
TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY GROUP 
 
Date and Time:- Wednesday 31 July 2024 at 10.00 a.m. 

 
Venue:- Microsoft Teams 

 
Membership:- All Elected Members and Parish Council Representatives. 

 
 
The items which will be discussed are described on the agenda below and there are 
reports attached which give more details. 
 
Rotherham Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes.    
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
  

 
 
2. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 6th March 2024 (Pages 3 - 8) 
  

 
 
3. Matters arising from the previous minutes (not covered by the agenda 

items)  
  

 
 
4. Questions on Transport Issues (Pages 9 - 11) 
  

 
 
5. South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority Transport - Update  
  

 
6. Bus Operators - Update  
  

(1) First Group 
(2) Stagecoach 
(3) Rotherham Community Transport 

 
 
7. Railway Operators - Update  
  

 
 
8. RMBC Transportation Unit - Updates  



  

 
 
9. Any other business  
  

 
 

The next meeting of the Transportation Advisory Board  
will be held on Wednesday 30 October 2024 

commencing at 10.00 a.m. 
via Microsoft Teams. 

 
SHARON KEMP, OBE  
Chief Executive. 



1 TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 06/03/24 

TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY GROUP 
Wednesday 6 March 2024 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Allen  (in the Chair); Councillors  Bennett-Sylvester, Browne, 
Castledine-Dack, Griffin, McNeely, Pitchley and Tarmey. 
 
Also in attendance were Paul Hopkinson (First Group), Sam Millington (SYMCA) Nat 
Porter (RMBC), Matthew Reynolds (RMBC), and John Young (Stagecoach),. 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors, Atkin, Ball, Brookes and Cusworth.  
  
69.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 25TH OCTOBER 

2023  
 

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting held on 
25 October 2023. 
 
Agreed: That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2023, be 
approved as a correct record of proceedings. 
  

70.    MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES (NOT 
COVERED BY THE AGENDA ITEMS)  
 

 Arising from Minute No. 64 (Bus Operators – Update), where it was 
agreed that feedback be provided to the next meeting on the reliability of 
electric buses during periods of adverse weather. John Young, 
Commercial Director for Stagecoach explained they had electric buses in 
operation in various parts of the UK of different types. The overall 
message was that they had performed positively and better than expected 
overall however it was early days. 
  

71.    QUESTIONS ON TRANSPORT ISSUES  
 

 The Transportation Advisory Group noted the question and answer on 
transport matters that had been submitted in advance of the meeting and 
included within the agenda pack. 
  

72.    SOUTH YORKSHIRE MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY 
TRANSPORT - UPDATE  
 

 Sam Millington, Senior Bus Development Officer, who provided the 
following update: 

  He was responsible for leading on the consultation for a number of 
service changes, which in Rotherham it included service 72 and 
217 in the north of the borough, where they had worked alongside 
Stagecoach to merge the routes together to open up new links and 
to make 217 more attractive for users.  This meant there would be 
a direct bus from Newell into Cortonwood and a bus from Manvers 
to Swinton station again. 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 06/03/24 2 

  There were still two main service change dates per year, in April 
and September. The Council would be receiving the documents 
and public notices of the changes and timetables would be going 
live from Monday 11 March 2024 on 
www.travelsouthyorkshire.com. 

  They were working closely with Stagecoach regarding the 
introduction of the electric buses in the Dearne Valley on routes 
22X and 221. 

  A refresh of the Bus Service Improvement Plan had to be 
submitted to the Department for Transport (DfT) by 12 June 2024.  

  The next stage of the Bus reform was due to go for before the 
Leaders of the MCA Board on the 12 March with the publication of 
the franchising assessment report, which stated that buses in the 
region should be taken back under public control, with depots and 
fleets owned directly by SYMCA as the preferred option. If 
approved at the MCA Board it would then progress to a 12-week 
public consultation. 

  The Tram will go back into public ownership on 22 March 2024. 
Lots of work had been undertaken in the background to ensure a 
seamless transition whereby the customer would not notice the 
difference. 

  It was proposed that the tram stop at Magna would open around 
January time. 

  A business plan to help the tram system grow was being 
developed but it was highlighted that new tram routes were 
expensive and took time to build. 

  In terms of rail, the strikes were continuing, the most recent being 
with Northern services although information on further dates was 
not yet available. 

  The regulated increase in rail fare of 4.9% was now in place. 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified: 

  With the X78 becoming the X3 service there was a potential that 
buses could bunch during times such as events taking place at the 
Sheffield Arena. The existing timetables had been considered 
when setting the schedule however tweaking the scheduled at a 
future date was a possibility. 

  The Bus reform was significant therefore it was suggested that it be 
brought back as an agenda item to a future meeting when it was 
open for public consultation. 

 
Agreed: that an item on the Bus reform would be added for discussion at 
a future meeting once it was open for public consultation. 
  

73.    BUS OPERATORS - UPDATE  
 

 First Group: 
Paul Hopkinson, Network and Schedules Manager reported that a 
consultation session had been held at the beginning of February which 

Page 4

http://www.travelsouthyorkshire.com/


3 TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 06/03/24 

ran for two weeks. It was successful and received good feedback and 
changes had been made to timetables as a result of the consultation. 
These would be distributed to SYMCA shortly if not already done so.  
 
The journeys had been enhanced on services X1, X78 to give better 
connections, particularly for the morning services. The suggested 
revisions would continue as expected. 
 
The extensions to the X5 service in the Dinnington/Maltby area had been 
received quite well as it was a new service. This provided better 
connections to Doncaster from the Maltby area and through from 
Sheffield. 
 
Discussions highlighted the better connections around Dalton/Thrybergh 
with the X3 service however it was noted that the disruption with the 
evening services on the 115 and 116 routes were viewed as one-off 
incidents. 
 
Stagecoach: 
John Young, Commercial Director expressed his appreciation for the 
ability to have these discussions welcome the opportunity to receive 
feedback from the group. 
 
The Rawmarsh depot was in a good position at the moment this was due 
to the provision of their first electric bus on site. This had been delivered 
ahead of the others to provide training opportunities for engineers and 
drivers. They would receive twenty-three new electric buses going into 
use on two routes that served Rotherham, which were the 22X and the 
221. The launch date for this had been delayed but looking at a date in 
early May. The buses would look and feel quite different, they would be 
painted blue and would carry their own brand, Electro. He extended an 
open invitation to members and others who were part of this group to 
have a visit to see the vehicles at the Rawmarsh depot. 
 
Services changes would come into effect from 6 April 2024. He confirmed 
that there would now be two service change dates within a year, these 
would be the weekend after Easter and the start of September.  
 
He noted that the changes due in April were regarding the punctuality of 
services with the exception of the 72 and the 217 services which were 
being joined together. He expressed concerns that these scheduling 
changes were making the service less attractive but were necessary due 
to the increased traffic. This was not a new concern but worth reiterating 
given that some of the timetables had only been altered in October 2023 
and changes were being made to them again only six months later. 
 
Additional journeys were being added back in during the evenings and on 
Sundays for some routes. In October, due to funding issues, SYMCA 
reduced frequencies on a number of routes. The frequency was 
maintained on some routes at those times however following feedback a 

Page 5



TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 06/03/24 4 

combination of additional services and improved punctuality should 
produce a more attractive service for customers. The main frequency 
increase that was now available due to staff availability was to service 
221, from Rotherham, through Swinton to Doncaster was increasing in 
frequency from every 30 minutes to every 20 minutes during the daytime, 
Monday to Saturday. 
 
The UK Bus Awards took place last month and Dawn Murphy, Operations 
Manager at the Rawmarsh depot was presented with the award for UK 
Bus Manager of the Year. Also, one of her control team, Lisa, was highly 
commended in the Best Newcomer award as well. The Chair requested 
formally that the groups congratulations be recorded for those two 
individuals. 
 
Agreed:  

1. that anyone wishing to visit the Rawmarsh dept to view the new 
electric buses should contact Dawn Mitchell, Governance Advisor 
for this to be arranged with John Young.  

2. That formal congratulations to Dawn Murphy and Lisa be recorded 
in the minutes for their awards at the UK Bus Awards. 

 
Rotherham Community Transport: 
No representative was in attendance. 
 
Agreed: That the Head of Transport Infrastructure Service would contact 
the Rotherham Community Transport service to discuss attendance at or 
the provision of written updates for future meetings. 
  

74.    RAILWAY OPERATORS - UPDATE  
 

 No representative was in attendance. 
 
Agreed: That the Head of Transport Infrastructure Service would contact 
the Railway Operators to discuss attendance at or the provision of written 
updates for future meetings. 
  

75.    RMBC TRANSPORTATION UNIT - UPDATES  
 

 The Head of Transport Infrastructure Service, Matthew Reynolds gave the 
following presentation providing an update from RMBC’s Transportation 
Unit as detailed below: 
 
20mph Zone: 

  The Council’s 20mph policy was approved by Cabinet in February 
2024. 

  20pmh zones would not be implemented on main roads or bus 
routes, except where there were vulnerable road users such as 
outside schools. 

  They would be implemented with any measures needed to ensure 
compliance. 

Page 6



5 TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 06/03/24 

  The policy was not a list of where the Council would be 
implementing 20mph zones. 

  The Council would collaborate with local communities and 
implement these zones where they were supported unless the 
zone was dictated via the Department for Transport (DfT) for 
example. 

  The Council was still awaiting guidance from the DfT regarding how 
local authorities could address pavement parking. 

 
Transport Capital Programme 24/25: 

  This programme was being considered by Cabinet in March and 
the programme had already been drafted. 

  It consisted of £4.2m to be spent on local schemes of which £1.8 
was carried forward from 23/24. 

  The acronym CRSTS stood for the City Region Sustainable 
Transport Settlement which was the funding the came from the DfT 
to the SYMCA and then the Council allocated the funding to assist 
with various objectives. 

  The scheme also included some capital from the Council and some 
Section 106 funding. 

  Three pedestrian crossings were progressing within the 2024/2025 
funding year, which were Cortonwood, where they were due to be 
on site during the Summer, Upper Wortley Road, where they were 
due to be on site during the Spring and Wath Road, which was at 
the start of the design process. 

  In terms of the Local Neighbourhood and Road Safety schemes, 
tranche 1 was due for delivery during 2024/25 and tranche 2 would 
begin the development stage in 2024/25 with a view to delivery in 
2025/26. 

 
Major projects update: 

  The Broom Road cycleways project was substantially complete. 
  The Rotherham – Maltby bus corridor forecast would be completed 

in April 2024. 
  The Sheffield Road cycleways was forecast for completion in July 

2024. 
  The city region sustainable transport settlement outlines a number 

of key schemes, of which the feasibility study was complete for 
Fitzwilliam Road, Broom Road extension and the public 
engagement and consultation was due to commence in the 
summer. 

 
He noted that the Institute of Chartered Engineers recognised the Council 
with two awards recently one for Ickles Lock and for the A630 Parkway 
Widening. These awards will be presented to Council at a future meeting. 
 
Discussion ensured on the presentation with the following issues 
raised/clarified: 

  It was clarified that the CRSTS programme was until 2027 so any 

Page 7



TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 06/03/24 6 

funding could be carried over. 
  There was no opportunity to retrofit actions to any previous 20mph 

schemes. 
  Good to see some excellent projects being completed/put forward. 
  It was suggested that a crossing on Worksop Road or Dinnington 

Road in Woodsetts could be considered as part of the Capital 
Programme in the future. 

  
76.    ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 
 There was no other business to report. 

  
77.    DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING  

 
 Agreed: that a further meeting be held on Wednesday 24 July 2024, 

commencing at 10am held via Microsoft Teams. 
 

Page 8



Questions to Transport Advisory Group – 31st July, 2024 
 
Question 1 – Councillor Blackham 
I am receiving various communications regarding poor quality of service from the 
Door-to-Door service particularly with regard to transport offered to Disabled clients. 
The main issues seem to be the unreliability of pick up and drop off times. These can 
vary by up to one and a half hours both in a morning and evening. For Clients that are 
attending events this has knock on consequences to their entire day’s activity and on 
the services of other partner organisations. For example, Socialeyes whose daily 
activities are being compromised by the unscheduled late arrival of their clients and 
indeed the unreliability of the pickups at the end of the day. In addition, when Clients 
need additional services because their care package has been increased and they 
need to attend for additional days Door to Door are refusing to extend their service to 
the individuals concerned, stating that they do not have the capacity to service these 
clients. 
 
I should point out that my son Mr Matthew Blackham is one of those affected by the 
issues raised above. 
 
I would like an assurance that this situation is only temporary and that Door to Door 
will commit to a date by which their service will be of a suitable quality to meet the 
reasonable expectations of the Disabled community within Rotherham. They deserve 
no less. 
Answer SYMCA - Community Transport provides vital services for the whole of 
Rotherham.  Reductions and pressures on other organisations including community 
groups, doctors and the NHS more widely, has meant that more and more users are 
wanting to use community transport for medical appointments and other needs. 
  
South Yorkshire MCA fund community transport so that all communities can get travel 
at least twice per week so that everyone in the community can use the services.  The 
challenges seen by the NHS and educational/day care centres, including for transport 
of patients, has seen a sharp rise in requests for transport for doctors, 
daycare/education and hospital appointments.  These journeys are proving to be a 
challenge for community transport as they regularly run late and this has a knock-on 
effect to other customers. 
  
Customers using community transport are given an initial time and this is confirmed 
more accurately nearer the booking date.  On occasions these times have to be 
changed to cater for the needs of everyone.  Community Transport requires customers 
to have some flexibility as it is not a taxi service but a service trying to cater for the 
whole community.  Some customers would like to access transport 5 days a week but 
this is not something that can be achieved as the number of vehicles and drivers are 
not available. 
  
Feedback from customers shows a high level of satisfaction and regular use by 
residents week after week.  Unfortunately issues do arise, usually outside of the 
control of the community transport provider, but we continue to work with them on 
improving services.  To tackle the ageing fleet of vehicles the community transport 
providers have, SYMCA is investing £1.2m in new vehicles and infrastructure during 
2024/25 that will see new electric vehicles trialled, including in Rotherham. 

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



  
If community groups wish to book multiple pick-ups for regular events then this is 
something we can discuss with them but a balance has to be found so that all users 
can access the service and it is not monopolised by the same groups or individuals to 
the detriment of others. 
  
With regard to the Councillor’s questions that relates to a specific individual, we cannot 
respond to the details on this, but both SYMCA and Rotherham Community Transport 
are happy to meet with the Councillor to discuss his personal transport needs and 
concerns. 
 
 
Question 2 – Councillor Thorp 
The bus lane from Maltby, when it passes Wickersley School, there are parents 
dropping off or picking up school children holding the buses up - why are there speed 
cameras but no bus lane infringement cameras.  
Answer – RMBC - Whilst the Council does hold powers to enforce bus lanes, no 
concerns have been raised with us by operators regarding delays caused by 
misuse of bus lanes at this location. We would invite operators’ views on the 
matter – enforcement was something the Council could consider if there was 
need. 
 
 
Question 3 – Councillor Thorp 
The latest cycle lane on Westgate to be opened - what is this meant to be?  It has to 
be incorrect and this needs changing. 
Answer RMBC - To support affordable and environmentally friendly travel, 400 
metres of advisory cycle lanes on Westgate help extend the existing cycle route 
from the Sheffield City boundary near the Magna Science Adventure Centre on 
the A6178, through to Rotherham Town Centre. They indicate to drivers the 
distance they should leave when passing cyclists. Motorists use a single lane 
down the middle of the road, moving into the advisory cycle lanes when passing 
vehicles approaching in the opposite direction. The layout was developed to 
provide cycling infrastructure proportionate to volume of traffic with reference 
to national guidelines, whilst prioritising space for walking and maintaining 
access to businesses, which were highlighted to us during scheme 
development as priorities for Ward Members and the local community. 
 
Whilst new to Rotherham, the layout has formed part of Department for 
Transport design guidance since at least 2008, and successful similar schemes 
have been in place in the UK for as long as two decades. Observations 
undertaken to date indicate the layout was working well (notwithstanding an 
increase in traffic associated with displacement from the ongoing Centenary 
Way viaduct works). The scheme will be monitored post implementation, 
including being subject to a Stage 3 Road Safety Audit. The latter audit has been 
commissioned and we expect to receive the audit report within weeks.  
 
 
  

Page 10



Question 4 – Councillor Thorp 
Concerns have been raised about crossings on the Stag roundabout having no 
pedestrian control so always at the mercy of drivers following the highway code. 
Answer RMBC - Officers sympathise with this concern – per our current 
procedure for assessing pedestrian crossings, the extant zebra crossings are 
no longer an adequate provision for pedestrians for the road layout and volume 
of traffic passing through the junction. 
 
The Council was developing a scheme to improve, amongst other things, 
pedestrian crossings at Stag Roundabout, with initial feasibility work indicating 
replacement of the zebra crossings with signal-controlled crossings as being 
the emerging preferred option. Funding for the works would be part of a broader 
scheme, funded by the Department for Transport and so needing to deliver on 
the Department’s strategic objectives in respect of bus priority and active travel 
to leverage this funding. We hope to commence engagement on this scheme 
with the public later this year. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 6th March 2024
	4 Questions on Transport Issues



